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Nepal Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of
Sindhu Bikas Bank Limited
Barahbise, Sindhupalchowk

Reéport on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sindhu Bikas Bank Limited (referred to as entity), Barahbise,
Sindhupalchowk, which comprise Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 32", 2079, and Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and Notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the entity as
at:Ashad 32", 2079, of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards and other applicable laws.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA). Our responsibilities are further described
_ ifvthe Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent.of
“the entity in accordance with The Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Nepal’s code of ethics for professional
accountants (ICAN’s Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statement in
Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matters

Amount of Rs. 17,400,000.00 during the year 2077/78 and Rs.7,579,021.00 during the year 2078/79 has been embezzled
from Dolalghat Branch as mentioned in Significant Accounting Policies 4(B) of Financial Statements. Legal case has been
filed by entity at Appellate Court, Patan by CIB. Entity has also initiated staff fidelity insurance claim (Limit of Rs 10 million)
from Prabhu Insurance Company Limited. Entity has recovered Rs. 2,200,000.00 from one of the accused persons and
'rhac_,l'e provision of Rs. 22,779,021 against such loss.

Entity has shown assets and liabilities relating to ROU separately rather than showing as net assets/liabilities.
Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matter )

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether
or not due to fraud) identified including those which has greatest effect on overall audit strategy, allocation of resources
in the audit and directing effort of the engagement team. We summaries below key audit matters, in decreasing order of
audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters
and, as required for public interest entities, our results from those procedures. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter [ How the Key Audit Matter was Addressed
A. Impairment of Loans and Advances to Customers including Interest Income on Recognized Bad Loans and
Advances

Allowances for impairment of loans and advances | We planned and tested the operating effectiveness of key
to customers have been made based on incurred | controls established by the Entity to identify loss events

loss model and Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) o
Q%‘“%Fa(,’)

f; Laligp,,.\ % )‘ ‘
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regulations, as applicable. The Entity is required

to apply its judgment and estimation to
determine allowances for impairment. In
addition, assessment of allowances for

impairment is important as carve out provides for
higher of the incurred loss model or NRB's
directive.

The carrying value of the loans and advances to
the customers can be materially misstating if the
Entity's  judgment and  estimation are
inappropriate.

In addition to above, interest income on loans and
advances to customers has been recognized on
accrual basis calculated by the Entity's core
banking system and following the interest income
recognition Guidelines 2019 issued by NRB.
Recognition of interest income on non-
performing loans and advances involves
estimation and judgments on calculating net
realizable value of loans and advances.

Considering the significance of the above matter
to the financial statements, we have identified
this as a key audit matter for the current year
audit.

and for determining the extent of provisioning required
against non-performing loans and advances to customers.

The testing of controls includes testing of controls over
correct identification and classification of non-performing
loans and advances to customers on time-based criteria,
control over statistical models used to calculate the
incurred loss in accordance with incurred loss model;
control over monitoring of loans and advances to
customers with higher risk default; control over accurate
computation and recording of provisions; and control
over the governance and approval process related to
provisions including continuous reassessment by the
Entity's Management.

We selected a sample of loans and advances to
customers, checked installments of repayments and
tested classification of non-performing loans and
advances to customers based on the number of days
overdue; evaluated the Entity's assessment for
classification of loans and advances to customers as
performing and non-performing based on repayment
pattern, documentation, inspection and through
discussion with the Entity's Management, assessment of
control over mortgage value of loans and advances to
customers.

We selected sample of loans and advances to customers
and independently performed and reassessed whether
there was need to classify loans and advances to
customers as non performing and compared our outcome
to that prepared by the entity and challenged various
assumptions and judgments which were used by the
Entity's Management.

We assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of
disclosures against the relevant accounting standards and
NRB requirements relating to allowances for impairment
on loans and advances and interest recognition, and
considered to be acceptable.

b. Information Technology System and Control impacting Financial Reporting in relation to the entity

The Entity's Information Technology environment
is complex and involves a large number of
independent and inter- dependent Information
technology systems used in the Bank's operations
for processing and recording a large volume of
transactions at numerous locations. As a result,
there is a high degree of reliance and dependency
on such Information technology systems for the
Bank's financial reporting process. Appropriate
Information technology, general controls and
application controls are required to ensure that
such Information technology systems are able to
process the data, as required, completely.
accurately and consistently for reliable financial
reporting.

In assessing the integrity of the Information technology
systems, we involved our Information technology experts
to obtain an understanding of the Information technology
infrastructure and Information technology systems
relevant to the Bank's financial reporting process for
evaluation and testing of Information technology general
controls and Information technology automated controls
existing in such Information technology systems.

We also evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key automated controls within various
business processes. This included testing the integrity of
system interfaces, the completeness and accuracy of data
feeds and automated calculations, and considered to be
acceptable.

/:*“ A2

(2 st i;\/%%

Hitpy,.
C‘nn:




J3! s Yladgel 20T/ 06R

The accuracy and reliability of the financial
reporting process depends on the Information
technology systems and the related control
environment, including: Information technology
general controls over user access management
and change management across applications,
networks, and operating systems; and
Information technology automated application
controls.

Due to the importance of the impact of the
Information technology systems and related
control environment on the Bank's financial
reporting process, we have identified testing of
such Information technology systems and related
control environment as a key audit matter for the
current year audit.

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Bank's Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Letter, the Board of Directors and Chairman's Statement but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary tc
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free fromr
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance witt
NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticisr
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, desigr
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate tc
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frauds is higher than one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override o
internal control.

Obtain and understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that ar
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity'
internal control.
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e Evaluate appropriateness of accounting policy used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and relate
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the auc
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant dou
‘on the entity's ability to continue as going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures a
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of o
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among the other matters, the planned scope and timi
of the audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we report that:

e We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

e Inour opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained by the entity so far as it appears frc
our examination of such books of accounts:

e In our opinion Statements of Financial Position and Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incon
Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows dealt with by this report have been prepared
accordance with the procedure and format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank and agree with the books of accour
maintained by the entity.

e Inour opinion, so far as it appears from our examination of the books, the entity has maintained adequate capital fur
and adequate provision for possible impairment of assets in accordance with the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

e To the best of our information and according to explanation given to us and so far, appeared from our examination
the books of account of the entity, we have not come across cases where Board of Directors or any representative or a
employee of the entity have acted contrary to the provision of law relating to the accounts or committed a
misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the entity except for the matters described in “Other Matters”
preceeding paragraph of this report.

e There were no instances identified where the accounting fraud was committed except for the matters described in “Ot/
Matters” in preceeding paragraph of this report.
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Sindhu Bikash Bank Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As on Asar 32,2079
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Particulars Note Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Assets
(ash and Cash Equivalents 41 1,000,941,234 805,427,268
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 87,659,297 139,354,986
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 44 - -
Other Trading Assets 45 - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 4.6 445,250,735 624,138,966
Loans and Advances to Customers 47 3,548,577,259 2,937,716,167
Investment Securities 48 56,856,756 98,232,417
Current Tax Assets 49 28,810,980 20,180,145
Investment in Subsidiaries 410 - -
Investment in Associates 41 - -
Investment Property 412 77,503,113 25,756,777
Property and Equipment 413 198,440,296 197,052,917
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 2,165,490 2,941,292
Deferred Tax Assets 415 18,233,371 6,746,312
Other Assets 416 102,947,589 60,159,519
Total Assets 5,567,386,120 4,917,706,765

Particulars Note Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 419 - -
Deposits from Customers 420 4,785,770,121 4,257,853,058
Borrowings 421 20,000,000 -
Current Tax Liabilities 49 28,414,636 3,688,196
Provisions 422 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 415 - -
Other Liabilities 423 118,579,794 61,285,332
Debt Securities Issued 424 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total Liabilities 4,952,764,552 4,322,826,586
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 557,456,067 557,456,067
Share Premium - -
Retained Earnings (70,329,997) (30,279,841)
Reserves 427 127,495,499 67,703,953
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 614,621,569 594,880,179
Non Controlling Interest
Total Equity 614,621,569 594,880,179
Total Liabilities and Equity 5,567,386,120 4,917,706,765
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 428 77,514,635 58,148,744
Net Assets Value per share 110.25 106.71

CA. Shailesh Dahal

Head -Finance

Sunita Baidar
Head -Account

Neeva Dangol Shrestha
Director

Dinesh Kumar K.C.
Director

Ram Kumar Giri

Rajendra Kumar Shrestha

Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Sanjeeb Pradhan Basanta Kumar Katuwal Sameer Kakshapati
Director Director Director

CA. Ramesh Nepal
Senior Partner
Nepal Associates,
Chartered Accountants

Sunil Man Shakya

Director
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Neeva Dangol Shrestha

R

Sunita Baidar

Sindhu Bikash Bank Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
As on Asar 32, 2079
Particulars Note Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Interest Income 429 446,741,693 345,770,431
Interest Expense 430 279,459,666 197,335,303
Net Interest Income 167,282,027 148,435,128
Fee and Commission Income 431 20,577,204 24,865,300
Fee and Commission Expense 432 1,359,531 1,321,830
Net Fee and Commission Income 19,217,672 23,543,470
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 186,499,700 171,978,599
Net Trading Income 433 - -
Other Operating Income 434 2,661,687 43,554,815
Total Operating Income 189,161,386 215,533,413
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loans and Other Lossess 435 (46,605,730) 90,747,678
Net Operating Income 235,767,117 124,785,735
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 436 94,502,556 72,992,844
Other Operating Expenses 437 50,990,332 44,696,571
Depreciation & Amortisation 438 16,025,302 14,716,145
Operating Profit 74,248,927 (7,619,825)
Non Operating Income 439 - -
Non Operating Expense 4.40 - -
Profit Before Income Tax 74,248,927 (7,619,825)
Income Tax Expense 441

Current Tax 28,143,326 3,688,196

Deferred Tax (194,418) (1,682,664)
Profit for the Period 46,300,018 (9,625,357)
Profit Attributable to:
Equity-holders of the Bank 46,300,018 (9,625,357)
Non-Controlling Interest
Profit for the Period 46,300,018 (9,625,357)
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share 8.31 (1.73)
Diluted Earnings per Share 8.31 (1.73)

Head -Account

Director

CA. Shailesh Dahal

Head -Finance

Dinesh Kumar K.C.

Director

Ram Kumar Giri

Chief Executive Officer

Sanjeeb Pradhan

Director

Basanta Kumar Katuwal
Director

Rajendra Kumar Shrestha

Chairman

CA. Ramesh Nepal

Senior Partner
Nepal Associates,

Chartered Accountants

Sameer Kakshapati
Director

Sunil Man Shakya

Director
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Sindhu Bikash Bank Limited

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

As on Asar 32, 2079
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Profit for the year 46,300,018 (9,625,357)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value (39,625,887) (9,088,074)

Gains/(losses) on revaluation - -

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 1,983,751 1,295,642

Income tax relating to above items 11,292,641 2,337,729
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (26,349,495) (5,454,702)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation) - -

Income tax relating to above items - -

Reclassify to profit or loss - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss -
¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equity method -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Income Tax (26,349,495) (5,454,702)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 19,950,523 (15,080,059)
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:

Equity-Holders of the Bank 19,950,523 (15,080,059)

Non-Controlling Interest
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 19,950,523 (15,080,059)

Sunita Baidar CA. Shalesh Dahal Ram Kumar Gir Rajendra Kumar Shrestha CA. Ramesh Nepal
Head -Account Head -Finance Chief Executive Officer Chairman Nz;gl'ogiir:i::&
Chartered Accountants
NeevaDangolShrestha  DineshkumarKC.  SanjeebPradhan  BasantaKumarKatuwal  SameerKakshapati  Sunl Man Shakya
Director Director Director Director Director Director
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¢ Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd.

A
Sindhu Bikash Bank Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
As on Asar 32, 2079
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 374,250,901 294 559,857
Fee and Other Income Received 20,577,204 24,865,300
Dividend Received - -
Receipts from Other Operating Activities 1,418,831 423,902
Interest Paid (279,459,666) (197,335,303)
Commissions and Fees Paid (1,359,531) (1,321,830)
(Cash Payment to Employees (86,375,774) (64,382,401)
Other Expenses Paid (50,990,332) (44,591,161)
Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities (21,938,368) 12,218,364
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 51,695,689 (3,362,940)
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions - -
Other Trading Assets - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 181,242,617 (215,891,461)
Loans and Advances to Customers (561,932,343) (888,094,060)
Other Assets (34,357,368) (26,353,243)
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Due to Banks and Financials Institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposit from Customers 527,917,063 930,039,686
Borrowings 20,000,000 -
Other Liabilities 69,216,714 2,560,151
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Tax Paid 231,844,005 (188,883,502)
Income Tax Paid (27,844,204) (1,734,222)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 203,999,800 (190,617,724)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investment Securities 41,375,661 (57,383,419)
Receipts from Sale of Investment Securities 1,193,771 42,119,581
Purchase of Property and Equipment (16,436,879) (12,685,343)
Receipts from Sale of Property and Equipment - -
Purchase of Intangible Assets (200,000) (862,686)
Purchase of Investment Properties
Receipts from Sale of Investment Properties (51,746,336) 1,355,620
Interest Received 43,942,197 23,210,503
Dividend Received 49,084 -
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 18,177,498 (4,245,743)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Issue of Debt Securities - -
Repayments of Debt Securities - -
Receipts from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities - -
Repayments of Subordinated Liabilities - -
Receipt from Issue of Shares - -
Dividends Paid - -
Interest Paid
Other Receipts/Payments (26,663,332) (4,679,622)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (26,663,332) (4,679,622)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 195,513,966 (199,543,089)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01 805,427,268 1,004,970,357
Effect of Exchange Rate fluctuations on Cash and Cash Equivalents Held
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Asar 32 1,000,941,234 805,427,268

Sunita Baidar CA. Shailesh Dahal Ram Kumar Giri

Head -Account Head -Finance Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Neeva Dangol Shrestha Dinesh Kumar K.C. Sanjeeb Pradhan Basanta Kumar Katuwal Sameer Kakshapati
Director Director Director Director Director

R&

Rajendra Kumar Shrestha

(CA. Ramesh Nepal
Senior Partner
Nepal Associates,
Chartered Accountants

Sunil Man Shakya

Director
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial Statements, unless otherwise indicated.
1. Reporting Entity

SINDHU BIKASH BANK is a "B" class development bank operating in 5 districts i.e., Sindhupalchowk, Kavrepalanchowk, Dolakha, Chitwan and Makawanpur. It was
established in Bhadra 22, 2067 i.e., September 7, 2010.

This bank is licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank (Central Bank of Nepal) as Class “B” Development Bank and running under the Company Act & Bank & Financial
Institution Act of Nepal. The Bank s listed on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd and its stock symbol is “SINDU”.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1, Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared considering bank as a ongoing concern as the Board of the Bank is satisfied that the Bank has the resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to
present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

2.2, Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis and under historical cost conventions except where the standards require otherwise.
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) developed by the Accounting
Standards Board, Nepal (ASB, Nepal) and pronounced for application by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The financial statements comprise of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
in Changes in Equity, Statement of Cashflows and Notes to the Accounts on the format prescribed by NRB Directive No. 4.

2.3.  Reporting Period

The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan 2078 and ending on 32" Asar 2079. (15" July 2021 to 16
July 2022).

2.4.  Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is functional and presentation currency of the bank. The financial information
presented has been rounded off to nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

2.5, Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the
estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever the estimates have been applied along with the
nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

Reporting Pronouncement

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on 13 September 2013. The NFRS conform, in
all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated 10 November 2020 has resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with
Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to the Banks and Financial Institutions requlated by NRB on the specific recommendation of
Accounting Standard Board (ASB).

2.6.  Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements except for new or revised statements and interpretations
implemented during the year.

2.7. New Reporting standards issued but not effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements and
NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures have been applied. NFRS 9 has been complied for the classification of Financial Instruments. Few carve-outs on
applicable accounting standards as provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the Bank, the quantitative and qualitative
impact of the same have been disclosed in detail in Notes to the Accounts. Further, several new standards and amendments to the existing standards and
interpretations have been issued by International Accounting Standard Board after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become
applicable when Accounting Standard Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

2.8.  Discounting

Non-current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material. Interest income and expenses have been recognized on the unwinding of
financial assets and liabilities respectively.

R0
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

R¢

3.1. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material items in the Statement of Financial Position:
- Available for sale investments (quoted) are measured at fair value.
- Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of the plan assets.
3.2, Basis of consolidation
The bank does not have any subsidiaries & so the disclosure in this section is not applicable.
3.3, (ashand cash equivalents

(ash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and carried at amortized cost.

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks, money at call and money market funds and
financial assets with original maturity less than 3 months from the date of acquisition.

3.4.  Financial assets and Financial Liabilities
a. Recognition

The bank recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and
liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

b. Classification

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value based on business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR") method less impairment, if any.
The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements
are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

iii.Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:
The bank classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Any other financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.
Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

i. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective
interest method.

¢. De-recognition

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
d. Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The Bank follow three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;
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Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of quoted for similar instrument in active
markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried cost as the market price of such shares could
not be ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

e. Impairment

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an impairment loss should be provided in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management’s judgement is extensively used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in
future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on Management’s best estimate of the
present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgements about the number
of factors including a borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral.

Top borrowers and loans classified as non-performing assets as per NRB norms forming part of 25% of the portfolio are tested for individual impairment.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits to estimate the recoverable amount of cash flows.

The Bank considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
«Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.
«When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.
« Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the counterpart.

- Where the Bank consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness
of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

« Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of a bank of financial assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific individual financial assets.

A collective impairment provision is established for:

- groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that are not considered individually significant;
and

- groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical trends of probability of defaults, timings of recoveries, and current
economic and market conditions which may warrant for the loss being greater than the suggested by the historical trends.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment bank has categorized assets into following broad products as follows:
+ Auto Loan
+Home Loan
«Term Loan
« Personal Loan
+ Short Term Loan
Carve out adopted for assessment of impairment charge

The Bank has opted to apply carve out on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as
per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision required under NRB directive no. 2, higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as
impairment loss for loans and receivables.

3.5, Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or form
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit
taking. They are recognised on trade date, when the bank enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized when
sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognised in profit
or loss.

3.6.  Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities

The bank does not have derivative assets as on the reporting date so the disclosure in this section is not applicable.
3.7.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement:

The bank applies the cost model to all property and equipment and recognise these at the cost of acquisition plus expenditures directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost also includes the cost of replacing part of the
equipment when the recognition criteria are met.

R
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Depreciation:

Depreciation is calculated by using the written down value method on cost or valuation of the Property & Equipment other than freehold land and leasehold
properties. Depreciation on leasehold properties is calculated by using the straight-line method on cost or valuation of the property. The rates of depreciations
are given below:

The Bank has not measured the any property and plant at revaluation model and at fair value. Assets having acquisition cost less than or equal NPR 10,000
have been written off as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Rate of Depreciation per annum (%)

Asset Category For the year ended 15 July 2022 For the year ended 16 July 2021

Freehold Buildings 5% 5%
Motor Vehicles 15% 15%
Computer Equipment 25% 25%
Furniture 15% 15%
Office Equipment 15% 15%
Leasehold Properties 20% 20%

3.8.  Goodwill/Intangible Assets
a. Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business Combination is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The Bank follows the partial goodwill method for the computation of goodwill in business
combinations. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired.

b. Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recognised when the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, there is control over the asset as a result of past events, future economic
are expected from the asset. These intangible assets are recognised at historical cost less impairment less amortisation over their estimated useful life.
Amortisation of the intangible assets is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits
are consumed by the bank.

3.9. Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both other than those classified as property and equipment under NAS 16 —“Property, Plant and Equipment”;
and assets classified as non-current assets held for sale under NFRS 5 — “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Land and Building
acquired as non-banking assets are recognised as investment property.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including transaction costs. Depreciation is charges in investment property as they are partly intended for the
owner-occupied use.

3.10.  Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
a. Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or
other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland
Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of prior years.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed
to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realised or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates
and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting
bank and relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the bank has a legal right to offset.

3.11. Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
a. Deposits

Deposits by banks & customers are financial liabilities of the bank as there is an obligation to deliver cash or financial assets back to the depositing bank or
customer and are initially recognised at fair value, plus for those financial liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered
as the fair value for measuring the deposits.
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b. Debt Securities Issued

Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their amortised cost using effective interest method
except where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through profit t or loss.

¢. Subordinated Liabilities

These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. It shall include
redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc.

3.12. Provisions

A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event, the bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognised is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates and are reversed if there is not the probability of
outflow of resources.

The contingent liability are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation as it depends on the occurrence of an
uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items and are disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probably will
not require an outflow of resources. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.

3.13. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

a. Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial assets through other comprehensive income interest income or
expense is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The
calculation of effective interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or received that are integral part of the effective interest only if considered necessary.
Such a charges are not amortized over the life of the loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have
derived under effective interest method and are recognized directly in statement of profit and loss.

The interest income recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes the following:

« Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate method, except for impaired loans and
advances. These financial assets include investment in government securities, investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos,
interbank lending, etc.

« As per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Bank has not included the fees and paid or received in loans and advances that are immaterial orimpracticable
to determine reliably the effective interest rate and have recognized them directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

« As per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Bank has applied the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial
asset is written off either partially or fully.

- Interest on investment securities is calculated on effective interest rate.

« Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the period of discounting on accrual basis using
effective interest rate.

« The bank has adopted the following criterion in to suspend the interest income where there is reasonable doubt about the collectability of the
interest:

« Loans where there is reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of principal or interest;
« Loans against which individual impairment as per NAS 39 or life time impairment as per NFRS 9 has been made;

« Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrears and where the “net realizable value” of security is
insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest;

« Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective of the net realizable value of
collateral;

- Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not renewed within 3 months of the
expiry, and where the net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest;

« Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not renewed within 12 months of the
expiry, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral.

b. Fee and Commission Income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

2
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3.14.

3.15.

Dividend Income

Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the bank’s right to receive the dividend is established.

Net Trading Income

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and dividend from financial assets through profit
and loss. Trading expenses are deducted from the trading income and the amount net of trading expenses are disclosed in statement of profit and loss.

Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all gains/(losses) arises from the revaluation of
financial instrument at fair value.

Interest Expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest rate method.

Employee Benefits

a.

b.

Short term employee benefits

The bank’s short-term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, socials security expenses, bonuses as provided in the law
and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of
profit and loss as and when the related service is provided.

Long term employee benefits
« Defined Contribution Plans

The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss as and when the services are rendered by employees which the
bank contributes fixed percentage of the salary to the Employee's Provident Fund. The Bank has no further obligations under these plans beyond
its periodic contributions.

« Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The bank’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair
value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the bank's obligation and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The defined benefit obligation is recognised on the basis of the report of qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The bank
recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses related
to defined benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit and loss account.

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return on plan assets (excluding interest income) and
the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding interest) are recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive Income. The bank determines the
net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefits liability (assets), taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefits payments. Net interest expenses and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognized as personnel expenses in Statement of profit and Loss.

The bank provides gratuity and leave encashment as the defined benefits plans to its employees.
Bank has not been registered with Social Security Fund during the FY 2078-79.

3.16. Leases

Lease accounting has been prepared according to NFRS 16. Upon lease commencement the bank has recognized a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred by the bank. After lease commencement,
bank has measured the right-of-use asset using a cost model. Under the cost model a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted at
the borrowing yield rate of the bank.

3.17. Foreign Currency Transactions, Translation and Balances

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR). The bank does not have carried out foreign currency transactions during the reporting

period.

3.18. Financial guarantee and loan commitments

Financial Guarantees are contingent liabilities that arise out of the contract that the bank might make specified payments to reimburse the holder for loss
that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance with terms of debt instrument. Guarantee liabilities being the
off-balance items are disclosed if the outflow of economic resources is probable.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of
loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those
instruments are included in these financial statements as commitments.
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3.19. Share capital and reserves

Equity is the residual interest in the total assets of the Bank after deducting all of its liability. Shares are classified as equity when the Bank has an
unconditional right to avoid delivery of cash or another financial asset, that is, when the dividend and repayment of capital are at the sole and absolute
discretion of the Bank and there is no contractual obligation whatsoever to that effect. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity
instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are declared.

Reserves are the allocation out of profit or retained earnings. These are created as statutory requirement, accounting standard requirement and bank's
own requirement.

3.20. Earnings per share including Diluted EPS

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable
to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.21. Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of an entity:

- that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions
with other components of the same entity),

- whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment. For example, a corporate headquarters or some
functional departments may not earn revenues or may earn revenues that are only incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be operating
segments. For the purposes of this NFRS, an entity’s post-employment benefit plans are not operating segments.

The geographical segment has been identified on the basis of the location of the branches in 5 different District of the country.
3.22. Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. Investments in
associate entities are accounted for using the equity method (equity-accounted investees) and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment
includes transaction costs.

The Bank doesn't have any associate till date.
4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Disclosures)
A. Staff Loans measured at fair value

Under previous NAS, staff loans were recorded at cost less repayments net of loan loss provision, if any. Under NFRS, the Bank has to measure the staff
loans granted below the market interest rate at their fair value, calculate based on the market interest rate of similar products.

The fair value (Amortized cost) of such loans as at Asar 32 2079 was Rs. 38,351,786 and their previous NAS carrying amount was Rs. 36,349,660. The
difference between the fair value and NAS carrying amount was Rs. 42,941,596 has been netted off against staff loans & recognized as pre-paid staff
cost in other assets.

B. Provisions (excluding provision for tax)

Particular Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Provision/(Reversal) for loans and advances (54,184,751.29) 75,547,678.03
Provision for other assets 7,579,021.00 15,200,000.00
Provision for investments 35,713,165.45 7,980,815.73
Provision for PMS investment 3,556,923.08 1,107,257.80

In compliance with the NRB Directives and subsequent amendment there to, specific loan loss provision was made based on the arrears time period and
General provision were made at a specified rate given by NRB time to time.

Loan has been impaired with the amount which is higher between NFRS impairment and NRB 2.2 provisions as per the Carve-outs issued which has
been calculated as below.

EE
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Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Loan and Advances 4,019,776,112 3,642,892,007
Pass Loan 3,776,790,425 3,358,145,364
Watchlist 178,748,220 182,576,914
Restructured / Rescheduled - -
Sub-standard 14,042,589 16,325,650
Doubtful 41,150,244 15,840,572
Bad 9,044,634 70,003,507
Staffloan 38,368,150 36,426,113
Accrued Interest Receivable 26,849,821 27,887,854
Total Loan As per NFRS 4,084,994,084 3,707,205,973
Total Loan Loss Provision 91,166,090 145,350,841
Pass 49,098,276 54,216,790
Watch List 8,937,411 9,128,846
Restructured / Rescheduled - -
Sub-standard 3,510,647 4,081,412
Doubtful 20,575,122 7,920,286
Bad 9,044,634 70,003,507
Opening of Loan Loss Provision 145,350,841 69,803,163
Reversal of Loan Loss Provision -54,184,751 75,547,678
Total Collective Impairment of Loans and Advances-NFRS - -
Reversal of loss provision as per NRB -54,184,751 75,547,678

Provision for investments increased by NRs. 35,713,165.45/- primarily due to provision on equity shares.
Provision for PMS investment of Rs.3,556,923.08 made due to decrease in market value of share.

The Bank has detected embezzlement of fund in Ashwin 2078 committed by Mr. Suman Kharel, Act. BM of the Dolalghat branch. During the internal
investigation made by the bank, it was observed that Mr. Kharel has embezzled approx. NRs. 17.4 million cash from the vault of Dolalghat Branch before Asar
2078 out of which the bank has recovered NRs. 2.20 million only and also it was found that Mr. Kharel has embezzled additional Rs.7.57 million from the
customer's Deposit Account directly in Ashwin 2078. The Bank has filed the Legal case against Mr. Kharel to recover the embezzled amount at Appellate Court,
Patan through Criminal Investigation Bureau (CIB), Kathmandu. The Bank has also claimed the fidelity insurance against the embezzlement of fund made by
the staff(s) at Prabhu Insurance Company Limited.

In respect of this fraud case, the bank has already made provision of NRs.15.20 million in FY 2077-78 and has made provision of NRs. 7.57 million in FY 2078-79.
C.  Financial Investments - Available for Sale

The bank’s investment in shares and mutual fund are carried at fair value through other comprehensive income. The bonus share received is accounted by
increasing the number of shares without changing the cost of the shares.

As part of preparing financial statements for the current fiscal year, bank has identified errors in the accounting for investment in equity shares through PMS
investment. Upon the closing books of account for the FY 77-78, bank did not account investment in shares through PMS under Investment Securities
instead shown under other assets of Rs. 16.88 million at the year end and accordingly omitted recognition of unrealized gain/(loss) on investment in equity
shares through PMS investment. While monitoring PMS account this year bank identified a difference related to historical financial statements and
concluded that the previously issued FY 2077-78 financial statements were misstated. Accordingly, the bank is restating its financial statements as of and
for the year ended Asar 2078 to address unrealized loss of Rs. 1.10 million and is regrouping it into Investment securities with a corresponding decrease of
Other Assets by Rs. 11.07 million, to increase investment securities by Rs. 15.78 million, to increase deferred tax assets Rs. 0.33 million, to decrease FVR
reserve and increase regulatory reserve by Rs. 0.77 million & to decrease retain earnings by 1.10 million.

Also, bank did not account gain on sale of investment of Rs. 0.97 million through PMS for the FY 2077-2078, which is now rectified through giving
adjustment by giving effect on their respective head through Profit and Loss account thereby increasing current tax asset by Rs. 0.12 million, current tax
liabilities by Rs. 0.27 million, other expenses by Rs.0.11 million, interest income by Rs. 0.04 million and cash dividend income on other operating income
by Rs. 0.04 million.

The details of the investment made in these securities are presented in Note 4.8.3.
D. Personnel Cost

Additional expenses of Rs 2,901,615 were recognized as Personnel expenses as result of amortization of prepaid staff loan for Financial Year 2078/079.

3%
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E. StaffTraining Fund

NRB directive 6 require BFls to incur expenses towards employee and development equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’s total staff expenses
Amount remaining to the incurred towards employee training and development has been presented as staff training fund as per the requirement of the NRB
directive as shown below:

Particular Asad End 2079 Asad End 2078
Opening Staff Training Fund - -
Add: 3% of the last year staff expenses 2,189,785.32 -
Less: Actual staff training expenses this year - -
(losing Staff Training Fund 2,189,785.32 -

k. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

NRB directive 6 require BFIs to create towards corporate social development fund and appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit annually into this
fund for covering expenditure related to CSR activities in the subsequent year.

Particular Asad End 2079 Asad End 2078
Opening CSR Fund - 187,919.16
Add: 1% of profit this year 463,000 -
Less: CSR Expenses this year - 187,919.16
(losing CSR Fund 463,000 -

G. Regulatory Reserve

The amount to this reserve has been created from the profit/retained earnings as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs and is
not regarded as free for distribution of dividend. Details are as presented under:

Particular Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Opening Regulatory Reserve 39,894,389 5,153,735

Interest receivable on loans and advances 2,402,881 8,131,839

Actuarial losses -

Change in fair value on equity investment 27,489,062 6,361,652

Provision for Non-banking assets 32,600,192 16,226,769

Deferred Tax Assets 11,487,059 4,020,394

(losing Regulatory Reserve 113,873,582 39,894,389

The component wise break-up of the regulatory reserve is as follows:
Particular Intgrest Acturial Loss Provisi.on for Non Deferred tax Fair v.aIue.Ioss Total
Receivable Banking assets assets recognized in OCI

Balance as of Asad 31, 2076 2,291,021.00 928,859.00 - 2,302,319.00 2,717,942.00 8,240,141.00
Addition during the FY 2076/77 - - - 423,599.00 423,599.00
Reversal during the FY 2076/77 (1,464,596.00) (928,859.00) - - (1,116,550.00) |  (3,510,005.00)
Balance as of Asad 31, 2077 826,425.00 - - 2,725,918.00 1,601,392.00 5,153,735.00
Addition during the FY 2077/78 8,131,839.00 - 16,226,769.00 4,020,394.00 6,361,651.00 |  34,740,654.00
Balance as of Asad 31, 2078 8,958,264.00 - 16,226,769.00 6,746,312.00 7,963,044.00 |  39,894,389.00
Addition upto Asad 2079 2,402,881.00 - 32,600,192.00 11,487,059.00 27,489,062.00 |  73,979,193.00
Balance as of Ashad 32, 2079 11,361,145.00 - 48,826,961.00 18,233,371.00 35,452,106.00 | 113,873,582.00
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Cash and Cash Equivalent

4.1

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Cash in Hand

63,967,630

59,261,098

Balances with BFls

41,780,000

30,022,430

Money at Call and Short Notice

895,193,604

716,143,740

Other

Total

1,000,941,234

805,427,268

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

4.2

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Statutory Balances with NRB

87,659,297

139,354,986

Securities purchased under Resale Agreement

Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB

Total

87,659,297

139,354,986

Placements with Banks and Financial Instutions

4.3

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Placement with Domestic BFls

Placement with Foreign BFIs

Less: Allowances for Impairment

Total

Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts.

Others

Total

Other Trading Assets

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Treasury Bills

Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds

Equities

Other Trading Assets

Total

3%
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Loans and Advances to BFls 4.6
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Loans to Micro-Finance Institutions 450,707,268 631,813,914
Other-AIR on Loans to Micro Finance institutions 402,662 538,632
Less: Allowances for Impairment (5,859,194) (8,213,581)
Total 445,250,735 624,138,966
Allowances for Impairment 4.6.1
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Balance at Shrawan 01 8,213,581 4,164,611
Impairment Losss for the year:
Charge for the year (2,354,386) 4,048,970
Recoveries/Reversal - -
Amount Written Off - -
Balance at Asar End 5,859,194 8,213,581
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Loans and Advances measured at Amortized Cost 3,633,884,154 3,074,853,427
Less: Impairment Allowances
Collective Impairment (85,306,895) (137,137,260)
Individual Impairment - -
Net Amount 3,548,577,259 2,937,716,167
Loans and Advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 3,548,577,259 2,937,716,167
Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Product 4.7.1
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Product
Term Loans 1,405,712,926 1,239,209,336
Overdraft 423,310,424 507,603,012
Trust Receipt/Import Loans
Demand and other Working Capital Loans 405,008,663 189,102,114
Personal Residential Loans 452,363,697 425,653,894
Real Estate Loans 74,000,000 202,584,414
Margin Lending Loans 281,939,406 118,691,712
Hire Purchase Loans 243,885,479 211,894,517
Deprived Sector Loans 15,171,764 2,473,990
Bills Purchased
Staffs Loans 38,368,150 36,426,113
Other 267,676,485 113,326,470
Sub-Total 3,607,436,995 3,046,965,573
Interest Receivable 26,447,159 27,887,854
Grand Total 3,633,884,154 3,074,853,427
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Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Currency

4.7.2

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Nepalese Rupee

3,633,884,154

3,074,853,427

Indian Rupee

United States Dollar

Great Britain Pound

Euro

Japanese Yen

Chinese Yuan

Other

Grand Total

3,633,884,154

3,074,853,427

Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Collateral

4.7.3

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Secured

Moveable/Immoveable Assets

2,956,712,401

229,285,3679

Gold and Silver

121,011,893

918,065,17

Guarantee of Domestic BFls

450,707,268

633,817,093

Government Guarantee

Guarantee of International Rated Bank

Collateral of Export Document

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt

67,084,443

147,228,90

Collatereal of Government Securities

Counter Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

522,713,3

Other Collateral

Subtotal

3,595,516,004

303,842,731,4

Unsecured (staff loan)

38,368,150

364,261,13

Grand Total

3,633,884,154

307,485,3426

Allowance for Impairment

4.7.4

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Specific Allowance for Impairment

Balance at Shrawan 01

Impairment Loss for the year

Charge for the year

Recoveries/Reversals during the year

Write-0ffs

Other Movement

Balance at Asar End

Collective Allowances for Impairment

Balance at Sharawan 01

137,137,260

65,638,552

Impairment Loss for the year

Charge/(Reversal) for the year

(51,830,365)

71,498,708

Other Movement

Balance at Asar End

85,306,895

137,137,260

Total Allowances for Impairment

85,306,895

137,137,260

3¢
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4.8

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI

56,856,756

98,232,417

Total

56,856,756

98,232,417

Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

4.8.1

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Debt Securities

Government Bonds

Government Treasury Bills

Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank Deposit Instruments

Other

Less: Specific Allowances for Impairment

Total

Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI

4.8.2

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Equity Instruments

Quoted Equity Securities

56,856,756

82,450,251

Unquoted Equity Securities

Total

56,856,756

82,450,251
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Information relating to Investment in Equities 483
Particulars Asar end 2079 Asar end 2078

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in Quoted Equity
Api Power Company Ltd. 649 - Ordinary Shares 58,800 158,681 - -
Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd- 1- Ordinary Share 100 1,299 100 2,815
Janautthan Samudayic Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 6 -Ordinary Share 300 10,350 300 10,143
Life Insurance Corporation 2,923- Ordinary Share 5,742,474 4,136,045 5,742,474 5,705,112
Lumbini General Insurance Company Limited 1 - Ordinary Share 100 382 100 780
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited- 100149 Ordinary Shares 48,131,681 24,035,760 45,690,724 41,130,708
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd- 13396 Ordinary Shares 25,199,368 10,006,812 25,199,568 21,112,838
Nmb Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 2 -Ordinary Share 200 1,500 - -
National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 15 - Ordinary Share 1,100 29,025 1,100 39,633
Prime Life Insurance Company Limited 3,821 - Ordinary Share 2,908,532 2,174,149 2,908,532 3,170,142
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd- 16020 Ordinary Shares 13,175,871 8,682,840 13,175,871 11,278,080
Investment through PMS:
Citizen Investment Trust-697 ordinary shares 2,796,063 1,752,955 2,796,063.18 |  2,234,240.00
Neco Insurance Company Limited-996 ordinary shares 1,167,896 691,224 1,167,896.17 | 1,011,000.00
Himalayan Distillery Limited- 70 ordinary shares 186,013 238,700 186,012.80 220,480.00
Surya Life Insurance Company Limited-797 ordinary shares 611,514 308,439 150,119.69 161,350.00
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited 444,358 207,360 444.358.39 393,600.00
Premier Insurance Company Limited- 1240 ordinary shares 1,334,777 714,240 1,334,776.63 | 1,270,620.00
Prime Life Insurance Company Limited-575 ordinary shares 456,273 327,175 456,272.89 477,000.00
Life Insurance Company Nepal-1548 ordinary shares 2,887,306 2,190,420 2,887,306.03 | 3,021,180.00
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited - - 3,067,673.63 | 2,807,190.00
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited - - 755,364.13 709,560.00
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited - - 20,795.48 17,271.00
Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited - - 547,748.40 520,905.00
Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Limited - - 675,142.74 656,000.00
Shivam Cements Limited-1565 ordinary shares 2,399,894 1,189,400 2,399,893.65 | 2,281,770.00

12,284,094 7,619,913 16,889,424 15,782,166
Total 107,502,620.85 56,856,756 | 109,608,193.63 | 98,232,417
Current Tax Assets 49

Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Current Tax Assets
Current year Income Tax Assets 28,684,577 20,180,145
Tax Assets of Prior Periods 126,403 -
Current Tax Liabilities
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 28,143,326 3,688,196
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods 271,310 -
Total 396,344 16,491,949
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Total Investment

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount
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Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries 4.10.1
- Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries 4.10.2
et Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - -
Information relating to Subsidiaries of the Bank 4.10.3
S— Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - -
Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries 4.10.4
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Equity Interest held by NCI (%)
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Asar End
Dividend Paid to NCI
Equity Interest held by NCI (%)
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated Balances of NCl as on Asar End
Dividend Paid to NCI
Investment in Associates 4.11
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Investment in Quoted Associates - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates - -
Total Investment -
Less: Impairment Allowances - -
Net Carrying Amount - -

¥
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A

Investment in Quoted Associates 4111
Partialar Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates 411.2
S Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - -
Information relating to Associates of the Bank 4113
Percentage of Ownership held by Bank
Particular
Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Total - -
Equity Value of Associates 4114

Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Total - -
Investment Properties 412

Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 01. -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year. - -
Net Changes in fair value during the year. - -
Adjustment/Transfer. - -
Net Amount - -
Investment Properties measured at Cost
Balance as on Shrawan 01 25,756,777 27,112,397
Addition/(Disposal) during the year 53,034,175 -
Net Changes in fair value during the year (1,287,839) (1,355,620)
Adjustment/Transfer - -
Net Amount 77,503,113 25,756,777
Total 77,503,113 25,756,777

¥R
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A

¥

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414
Particulars Goodwill Softvare Other Total Asar end 2079
Purchased Developed
Cost
As on Shrawan 012078 4,749,677 4,749,677
Addition during the Year
Acquisition 200,000 200,000
(apitalization - -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - -
Balance as on Asar end 2079 4,949,676 4,949,676
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01. 2078 1,808,384 1,808,384
Amortisation charge for the year 975,801 975,801
Impairment for the year - -
Disposals - -
Adjustment - -
As on Asar end 2079 2,784,186 2,784,186
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value 2,165,490 2,165,490
As on Asar end 2078 2,941,292 2,941,292
As on Asar end 2079 2,165,490 2,165,490
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Deferred Tax 415
Current Year
Particulars Def:srzzttisTax Deferred Tax Liabilities Net Deferred Tax Assets /
(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFls -
Loans and Advances to Customers - -
Investment Properties 7,340,681 (7,340,681)
Investment Securities 11,887,766 - 11,887,766
Property and Equipment 5,530,943 - 5,530,943
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 7,587,653 7,587,653
Lease Liabilities 567,689 567,689
Provisions - -
Other Temporary Differences i - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 18,233,371
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2079 18,233,371
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2078 (6,746,312)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (11,487,059)
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss (194,418)
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in OCI (11,292,641)
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized directly in Equity -
Other Assets 4.16
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Assets held for Sale - -
Other Non-Banking Assets - -
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts Receivable 4,427,106 3,861,090
Accrued Income - -
Prepayments and Deposits 1,737,024 1,173,079
Income Tax Deposit - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 42,941,596 38,124,958
ROU Assets 52,465,713 -
Other Assets 1,376,149 17,000,391
Total 102,947,589 60,159,519
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 4.17
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Money Market Deposits

Interbank Borrowing

Other Deposits from BFls

Settlement and Clearing Accounts

Total

¥R
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A

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

4.18

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Other Payable to NRB

Total

Derivative Financial Instruments

4.19

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts.

Others

Total

Deposits from Customers

4.20

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Institutional Customers:

Term Deposits.

547,750,899

724,530,471

(all Deposits

704,686,442

490,596,203

Current Deposits.

584,901,523

469,470,153

Others.

1,748,000

Individual Customers:

Term Deposits

1,544,399,538

976,613,142

Saving Deposits

1,356,039,120

1,446,451,096

Current Deposits

46,214,621

149,091,993

Others

29,979

1,100,000

Total

4,785,770,121

4,257,853,058

Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

4.20.1

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Nepalese Rupee

4,785,770,121

4,257,853,058

Indian Rupee

United States Dollar

Great Britain Pound

Euro

Japanese Yen

Chinese Yuan

Other

Total

4,785,770,121

4,257,853,058

¥
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4.21

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Domestic Borrowings

Nepal Government

Other Institutions.

Other

20,000,000

Sub Total

Foreign Borrowings

Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions

Sub Total

Total

20,000,000

Provisions

4.22

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Provisions for Redundancy

Provisions for Restructuring

Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation

Onerous Contracts

Other Provisions

Total

Movement in Provision

4.22.1

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Balance at Shrawan 01

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of Discount

Balance at Asar end

Other Liabilities

4.23

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations

12,346,600

11,469,909

Liabilities for long service leave

12,945,578

9,485,026

Short term employee benefits

548,430

548,430

Bills payable

Sundry Creditors

10,063,707

7,835,632

Expenses Accrual

5,844,093

1,372,497

Interest payable on deposits

3,644

2,902,789

Interest payable on borrowing

590,794

Lease Liabilities

54,358,011

Employee bonus payable

8,249,881

Other Liabilities

13,629,056

27,671,050

Total

118,579,794

61,285,332

¥\
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A
Defined Benefit Obligation 4,23.1
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Present value of unfunded obligations 12,346,600 11,469,909
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations 12,346,600 11,469,909
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligations 12,346,600 11,469,909
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 12,346,600 11,469,909
Plan Assets 4.23.2
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Equity securities . -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposit - -
Other . -
Total - -
Actual return on plan assets
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations 4.23.3
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 11,469,909 9,227,118
Actuarial (Gains)/losses (1,983,751) (1,295,642)
Benefits paid by the plan (1,354,913) (667,290)
Current service costs and interest 4,215,355 4,205,723
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 12,346,600 11,469,909
Movement in the fair value of plan assets 4,23.4
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 -
Contributions paid into the plan -
Benefits paid during the year -
Actuarial (losses) gains -
Expected return on plan assets -
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end - -
Amount recognised in profit or loss 4.23.5
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Current service costs 3,244,034 3,405,310
Interest on obligation 971,321 800,413
Expected return on plan assets - -
Total 4,215,355 4,205,723

¥
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Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 4.23.6
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Acturial (gain)/loss (1,983,751) (1,295,642)
Total (1,983,751) (1,295,642)
Actuarial assumptions 4.23.7
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Discount rate 9.00% 9.00%
Expected return on plan asset 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary increase 7.50% 7.50%
Withdrawal rate 14.00% 14.00%
Debt secutities issued 4,24
Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - -
Total - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component - -
Other - -
Total . -
Share capital 4.26
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Ordinary shares 557,456,067 557,456,067
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only) - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - -
Total 557,456,067 557,456,067
Ordinary Shares 4.26.1
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Authorized Capital
7,000,0000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 700,000,000 700,000,000
Issued capital
55,74,560 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 557,456,067 557,456,067
Subscribed and paid up capital
55,74,560 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 557,456,067 557,456,067
Total 557,456,067 557,456,067

RN
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A
Ordinary share ownership 4.26.2
Particulars Previous Year
Percent Amount

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government - -
"A" class licensed institutions - -
Other licensed intitutions - -
Other Institutions - -
Public 49.00% 49.00%
Other 51.00% 51.00%

Foreign ownership - -

Total 100.00% 100.00%

List of Principal Shareholders holding 0.50% or more share share of the total share of the bank 4.26.3

Name Nos. of Shares % of holding

Employees Provident Fund 399,661 7.17%

Devi Bahadur Shrestha 342,394 6.14%

Rajendra Kumar Shrestha 195,113 3.50%

Ram Hari Paudel 126,976 2.28%

Sashikanta Agrawal 104,159 1.87%

Suraj Shrestha 75,536 1.36%

Durga Bahadur Shrestha 55,746 1.00%

Janak Kumar Shrestha 55,745 1.00%

Amrit Kumar Khadka 55,745 1.00%

Naresh Lal Shrestha 55,745 1.00%

Keshav Bahadur Basukala 42,755 0.77%

Bishnu Bdr Khatri 41,712 0.75%

Mahima Basukala 36,233 0.65%

Parbati Shrestha 36,225 0.65%

Padam Bahadur Chhetri 35,344 0.63%

Ravi Maharjan 34,926 0.63%

Tulashi Maya Basukala 34,248 0.61%

Nirab Bhandari 30,970 0.56%

Bharat Prasad Parajuli 30,472 0.55%

Tirtha Man Shrestha 30,046 0.54%

Bed Bahadur Shrestha 27,876 0.50%

Pratap Khatri 27,874 0.50%

Balaram Shrestha 27,874 0.50%

Sharmila Shrestha Sakha 27,873 0.50%

Shyam Krishna Shrestha 27,873 0.50%

ko
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Reserves 4,27
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Statutory general reserve 43,914,210 34,654,206
Exchange equilisation reserve - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 463,000 -
(apital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory Reserve 113,873,582 39,894,389
Investment adjustment reserve - -
(apital reserve 18,746 18,746
Assets revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve (35,452,106) (7,963,044)
Dividend equalisation reserve - -
Actuarial gain 2,488,281 1,099,655
Special reserve - -
Other reserve 2,189,785 -
Total 127,495,499 67,703,953
Contingent liabilities and commitments 4.28
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Contingent liabilities 9,800,000 12,500,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 67,714,635 45,648,744
(apital commitment - -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation - -
Total 77,514,635 58,148,744
Contingent Liabilities 4.28.1
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Acceptance and documentary credit - -
Bills for collection - -
Forward exchange contracts - -
Guarantees 9,800,000 12,500,000
Underwriting commitment - -
Other commitments - -
Total 9,800,000 12,500,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 4.28.2
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Undisbursed amount of loans - -
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 67,714,635 45,648,744
Undrawn limits of credit cards - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - -
Total 67,714,635 45,648,744

“®?
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A

Capital commitments

4.28.3

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

(apital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

(apital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

Lease commitments

4.28.4

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

“®R




d3! affes UfidGel Q0OT/Q0OR

Interest Income 4,29
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
(ash and cash equivalent 14,508,711 7,237,914
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 43,942,197 23,036,003
Loans and advances to customers 383,696,273 311,214,488
Investment securities - 174,500
Loan and advances to staff 4,594 513 4,107,527
Other Interest Income - -
Total interest income 446,741,693 345,770,431
Interest Expenses 430
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Due to bank and financial institutions 5,867,534 -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 273,592,132 197,335,303
Borrowing - -
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other Charges - -
Total Interest expense 279,459,666 197,335,303
Fees and Commission Income 431
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Loan administration fees 14,376,774 17,875,808
Service fees 10 -
Consortium fees - -
Commitment fees 1,178 33,253
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 281,000 -
Prepayment and swap fees 43,704 1,286,735
Investment banking fees - -
Asset management fees - -
Brokerage fees 32,390 571,574
Remittance fees 2,045,313 2,478,229
Mobile banking issurance and renewal fees 1,558,630 712,393
Commission on letter of credit - -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 6,000 7,500
Commission on share underwriting/issue - -
Locker rental - -
Other fees and commision income 2,232,205 1,893,808
Total Fees and Commission Income 20,577,204 24,865,300

%3
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A

Fees and Commission Expense

4.32

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

542,400

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

1,359,531

410,009

DD/TT/Swift fees.

254,744

Remittance fees and commission

114,677

Other fees and commission expense

Total Fees and Commission Expense

1,359,531

1,321,830

Net Trading income

4.33

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Changes in fair value of trading assets

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets

Interest income on trading assets

Dividend income on trading assets

Gain/loss foreign exchange transation

Other

Net trading income

Other Operating Income

434

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Foreign exchange revauation gain

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities

(622,525)

43,093,592

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

Dividend on equity instruments

49,084

461,222

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment

872,941

Gain/loss on sale of investment property

943,356

Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other Operating Income

1,418,831

Total

2,661,687

43,554,815

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

4.35

Particulars

Asar End 2079

Asar End 2078

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFls

(2,354,386)

4,048,970

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customers

(51,830,365)

71,498,708

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial assets

7,579,021

15,200,000

( )
( )
( )
( )
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
( )
( )
( )

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total

(46,605,730)

90,747,678

RN
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Personnel Expenses 4.36
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Salary 45,247,142 42,377,169
Allowances 16,471,524 14,135,160
Gratuity Expense 4,215,355 4,205,723
Provident Fund 3,735,292 3,242,830
Uniform 1,580,100 108,442
Training & development expense 224,401 265,756
Leave encashment 8,402,678 4,997,488
Medical 3,424,569 275,000
Insurance - -
Employees incentive 50,000 -
(ash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRS 2,901,615 3,385,276
Other expenses related to staff - -
Subtotal 86,252,676 72,992,844
Employees Bonus 8,249,881 -
Grand total 94,502,556 72,992,844
Other Operating Expense 437
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Directors' fee 1,439,050 1,869,000
Directors' expense 748,808 496,611
Auditors' remuneration 655,400 565,000
Other audit related expense 624,594 308,975
Professional and legal expense 101,000 -
Office administration expense 27,899,563 27,121,874
Operating lease expense 14,299,486 11,518,634
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 549,468 650,874
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other Expenses 4,672,963 2,165,604
Total 50,990,332 44,696,571
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Office Administration Expenses 4.37.1
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Printing & Stationery expenses 3,534,511 3,197,851
Connectivity Expenses 3,866,974 3,938,376
Repair & Maintaince
a) Building - -
b) Vehicle 751,905 733,904
¢) Computer & accessories 53,650 165,258
d) Office equipment and other 1,441,864 417,788
Office expenses 2,661,708 2,046,933
Light, Electricity & Water exp 2,486,617 2,231,648
Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax 638,315 625,835
Security Expenses 5,553,690 6,530,989
Annual AGM expenses - 295,619
DCGC premium 1,922,184 1,740,686
Insurance exp 1,529,789 1,658,471
Periodicals & Books 39,300 28,880
Advertisement 603,627 544977
Donation - -
Entertainment exp 514,974 420,298
Other-Registration and Renewal 2,300,454 2,544,359
Total 27,899,563 27,121,874
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.38
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Depreciation on property and equipment 13,761,661 12,444,244
Depreciation on investment property 1,287,839 1,355,620
Amortisation of intangible assets 975,801 916,282
Total 16,025,302 14,716,145
Non Operating Income 4.39
Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Recovery of loan written off

Other income

Total

K<
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Non Operating Expenses 4.40
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Loan written off - -
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring . .
Other expense. - -
Total - -
Income Tax Expenses 441
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Current tax expense
Current year 28,143,326 3,416,887
Adjustments for prior years - -
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 194,418 1,682,664
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 27,948,909 1,734,222
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit 4411
Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078
Profit before tax 74,248,927 (8,561,511)
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 22,274,678 (2,568,453)
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 4353,099 2,656,633
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items - -
Total income tax expense 26,627,777 88,180
Effective tax rate 35.86% -1.03%
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Sindhu Bikash Bank Limited

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

For the year ended Asar 32, 2079

(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars Asar End 2079 Asar End 2078

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 46,300,018 (9,625,357)
Opening Balance in Retained Earnings (30,279,842) 13,898,251
Adjustment of Previous Year (209,133) -
Appropriations: -
a. General reserve (9,260,004) -
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund - -
¢. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (463,000) -
e. Employees' training fund (2,189,785) -
f. Other - -
a) Bonus share - -
b) Cash Dividend Paid - -
¢) Investment Adjustment Fund (249,059) -
d) CSR Expenses - 187,919
e) Staff Training Expenses - -
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 3,649,195 4,460,812
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (2,402,881) (8,131,839)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -
¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) - -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) (32,600,192) (16,226,769)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (11,487,059) (4,020,394)
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - -
i. Other (+/-)

- Fair Value Reserves (27,489,062) (6,361,652)
Distributable profit or (loss) (70,329,998) (30,279,842)

EX4
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Disclosures and Additional Information
Risk Management

Risk s inherent in the Bank’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling. The bank
has set risk limits and implemented controls. Each individual within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and continuous development of Bank’s risk management framework. The board
oversee the appropriateness and sufficiency risk management policies and its implementation. The board receives risk reports from risk management
committee, deliberate on reports and issue instructions to committee and the management.

Management committee ensures all risk management related policies are implemented. It oversees the functions of Integrated Risk Management
Department which is fully responsible for compliances of legal, regulatory or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Management Committee
submits reports to board level risk management committee and the board. The CRO ensures compliance of internal policies and procedures, prepares
risk related reports and submit to management and Risk management committee. Risk Management structure is depicted below:

Boellrd

[ 1
Risk Management CE|O
Committee (RO

Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank and is responsible to frame and implement robust policies and framework for effective
compliance of regulation and direction issued by the regulatory authority. BOD ensures the strategies, policies and procedure is in accordance with the
risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective management of risk within the Bank. The board understands the nature of risk of the bank, and periodically
reviews reports on risk management, including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through the reporting by the Risk
Management Committee and the Management Committee.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Bank has established Risk Management Committee with well-defined terms of reference
inline the NRB directive. At least four meeting is conducted on annual basis however number of meetings can be increased as per the requirement. The
committee supervises overall risk management of the Bank broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk and credit risk.

A, Credit Risk

The Bank has its own Credit Policy Guidelines to handle the Credit Risk Management philosophy that involves a continual measurement of probability
of default/loss; identification of possible risks and mitigations. The provisions of Capital Adequacy Framework -2007 are compiled in line-to-line basis
to overcome the Credit Risk. In order to manage and eliminate the credit risk, the Bank has a practice of maintaining the best quality assets in its book.
The Bank's Credit Policy elaborates detailed procedures for proper risk management. The Bank has delegated credit approval limits to various officials
to approve and sanction various amount of credit request based on their individual expertise and risk judgment capability.

As a check and balance mechanism, each credit case requires dual approval. Regular monitoring of the credit portfolio ensures that the Bank does not
run the risk of concentration of portfolio in a particular business sector or a single borrower. Similarly, the Bank also exercises controlled investment
policy with adequately equipped resource looking after the investment decisions.

The Bank has developed a risk assessment culture and has in place the required reports for assessing concentration of risks. Periodic performance
reporting based on Balanced Scorecard, in line with capital strength, to the Board is also in place. These reports are periodically put up to the board.
Board also reviews the same and issues instructions, as appropriate, to the Bank’s management.

During the current financial year, the Bank has availed the benefits of credit risk mitigation as under:

Particular 2022 (Rs.) 2021 (Rs.)
Deposits with own bank 67,084,443 14,722,890
Deposit with other banks and financial institutions - -

Securities issued by Nepal Government and Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Gold & Silver 121,011,893 91,806,517
Total 188,096,335 106,529,407

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the
acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

The general creditworthiness of customers tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality of a loan. However, collateral provides additional
security and the Bank generally requests large borrowers to provide same. The Bank may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate and
residential properties, floating charges over all corporate assets and other liens and guarantees.

The Bank's policy is to pursue timely realization of the collateral in an orderly manner. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay the outstanding claim.
The Bank generally does not use non-cash collateral for its own operations.
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Definition of Past Due
Bank consider that any amounts uncollected one day or more beyond their contractual due date are ‘past due’
Past due but not impaired loans

Past due but notimpaired loans are those for which contractual interest or principal payments are past due, but the Bank believes that impairment
is not appropriate on the basis of the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Bank. All loans and advances have been impaired.

B.  MarketRisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. The bank classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or
non—trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately.

i.Currency Risk:

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual
financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

The Bank does not have carried out any transactions in foreign currency & do not owned any assets in foreign currency.
ii. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The major interest rate risk that the bank is exposed to is the discount rate for determining.

iii. Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial

instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The bank’s equity price risk exposure relates
to financial investment held at FVTOCI, whose values fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

C. Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from the
impact of external events, including legal risks for the bank. Operational Risk is pervasive across all the functions of the Bank and is influenced by
all resources, including human resource, systems and procedural designs, deployed by the Bank to carry out those functions. Operational Risk can
be caused by both internal and external sources such as fraud, business interruptions, system failures, damage to physical infrastructure, failure
in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in products, customers, inadequacy in procedures or flawed process designs, and business
practices. The risk can occur in any business function or the business supporting functions.

The Bank is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical business practices and therefore to averse it from
potentially damaging operational risk events and is in a sound position to deal effectively with those events that do occur. The actions of the board
and senior management, and policies, processes and systems provide the foundation for a sound risk management culture

Bank seek to minimize our exposure to operational risk by use of key control standards, key control self-assessments and key risk indicators as
toolkits to identify, assess, monitor and control operational risk events through timely acknowledgement of emerging threats and underlying
vulnerabilities. The Bank shall also ensure highest level of governance standards and adherence to Code of Conduct and robust compliance to all
regulatory as well as the Bank’s internal policy, procedures and guidelines.

The Bank has adopted dual control mechanism in its all-operational activities where each and every financial and non-financial transaction is
subject to approval from an authority higher than the transaction initiator. Regular review meetings are conducted to assess the adequacy of risk
monitoring mechanism and required changes are made as and when felt necessary.

Effective policies, procedural guidelines and standard operating procedure are crucial tools for sound risk management. Therefore, adequacy and
effectiveness of the policies and procedures and their effective implementation is closely monitored by the department to ensure that they have
continuing relevance in line with regulatory requirement and adjusts to dynamic risk environment of the industry

D. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Hence the bank may be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances.
To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously
managing assets with liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The bank has formulated separate
internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the
availability of high-grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption
of expected cash flow. The Bank also has committed lines of credit that could be utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Bank maintains a
statutory deposit with the Nepal Rastra Bank equal to approx. 2.70% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the bank’s policy, the liquidity
position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and
specific to the Bank. The most important of these is to maintain the required ratio of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement.
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Liquid assets consist of cash, short—term bank deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale. Further the Statutory Liquid
Assets Ratio of the Bank for the month of Ashar 32, 2079 is 22.75%.

E. Risk Governance

Bank has a policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the bank and has inculcated risk culture among the
employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical
culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise directly through
the Bank’s activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

5.3. (apital Management

Capital management approach is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business and to meet
the regulatory capital requirements. The Bank's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is
adequately capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. Sindhu Bikas Bank is a licensed institution providing financial
services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of central bank so called Nepal Rastra Bank. The Bank's capital consists of Tier |
capital and Tier Il capital.

A.  Qualitative disclosures

The bank is assessing capital adequacy as per the framework as provided in Unified Directive-2078, directive no.1 as issued by the Nepal Rastra
Bank.

The bank is calculating, assessing, analyzing & monitoring the capital adequacy periodically.

The Board shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the current and future capital needs of the bank in relation to strategic objectives. The
management shall review and understand the nature and level of various risks that the bank is confronting in the course of different business
activities and how this risk relates to capital levels and accordingly implement sound risk management framework specifying control measures
to tackle each risk factor.

a) Capital structure and capital adequacy

- Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its Components:

Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Paid up Equity Share Capital 557,456,067 557,456,067

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares - -

Share Premium - -

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares - -

Statutory General Reserves 43,914,210 34,654,206

Retained Earnings (70,329,997) (30,279,841)

Un-audited current year cumulative profit - -

Special Reserve Fund - -

(apital Adjustment Reserves 18,746 18,746

Dividend Equalization Reserves - -

(apital Redemption Reserves Fund - -

Deferred Tax Reserve - -
Less: Goodwill - -
Less: Intangible Assets (2,165,490) (2,941,292)
Less: Fictitious Assets - -
Less: Deferred Tax Assets (18,233,371) (6,746,312)

Less: Investment in equity of licensed Financial Institutions - -

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests - -

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits - -

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments - -

Less: Purchase of Land & Building in excess of limit & utilized

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings - -

Less: Other Deductions - -

Total Tier 1 Capital 510,660,165 552,161,574

- Tier 2 Capital and Breakdown of its Components:
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Particulars FY2078-79 FY2077-78
Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share
Subordinated Term Debt - -
Hybrid Capital Instruments - -
General loan loss provision 51,615,697 56,585,525.40
Exchange Equalization Reserves - -
Investments Adjustment Reserves - -
Assets Revaluation Reserves
Special Reserve Fund - -
Total Tier 2 Capital 51,615,697 56,585,525
- Total Qualifying Capital:
Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Core Capital (Tier 1) 510,660,165 552,161,574
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 51,615,697 56,585,525
Total Capital Fund 562,275,861 608,747,100

Capital Adequacy Ratio:
Tier | Capital to Total Risk weighted exposures as on 16™ July 2022 is 11.55%
Total Capital Fund to Total Risk weighted exposures as on 16 July, 2022 is 12.72%

Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and future activities, if applicable:

Sindhu Bikash Bank adopts healthy risk management framework. The bank follows Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Risk
Management Guideline while taking decision on any business. It has always taken note of ICAAP and has taken steps accordingly in ensuring soundness
of capital position and sustainability of the business. The bank’s policies and procedures are approved by the Board of Directors and these documents
provide guidance on independent identification, measurement and management of risks across various businesses. Bank’s different committees like
Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee review the business and risks periodically and take account of stress test results, scenario analysis so as
to align risk, return and capital in sustainable manner.

The bank also defines risk aspects, considering domestic economic scenario, and puts in place the system to minimize and remove such risk. The risk
appetite and approach towards risk taking is well discussed in management level and board level. It is always aligned with the business, its return and
capital. Basel disclosures have been complied with, addressing the risks and adopting measures to minimize their impact. Increasing complexities in
risks, weakness of businesses and fast changing world with intense competition pose a threat to sustainability.

(apital planning is an integral part of the bank’s medium-term strategic planning and annual budget formulation process. Total risk weighted exposures
for the projected level of business operations is calculated, the required capital level is projected, and a plan is formulated to retain the required capital.
The bank is well capitalized and able to maintain the required capital through internal generation, and equally through capital markets if needed.

b) Risk exposures

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES FY 2078-79
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 3,741,681,919
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 387,573,820
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before Bank's adjustment of Pillar II) 4,129,255,738
« Risk Weighted exposures under each 11 categories of Credit Risk:
(ategories FY2078-79
(laims on Government and Central Bank -
(laims on Other Financial Entities -
(laims on Banks 277,728,960
(laims on Domestic Corporate and Securities Firms 921,420,828
(laims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio & Other Retail Portfolio 126,555,630
(laims secured by residential properties 1,076,117,890
(laims secured by Commercial real estate -
Past due claims 131,753,000
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High Risk claims 775,640,200
Other Assets 432,465,410
0ff Balance Sheet Items -
Total 3,741,681,919
« Total Risk Weight Exposures calculation Table:
RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES FY2078-79
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 3,741,681,919
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 387,573,820
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar II) 4,129,255,738.20
Adjustments under Pillar Il
Add: Net liquid assets to total deposit ratio is not shortfall. -
Add: Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE 82,585,115
Add: Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 4% of RWE 165,170,230
Add: RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2 % of gross income. 44,878,786
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustment of Pillar II) 4.421,889,869
Total Core Capital 510,660,165
Total Capital 562,275,861
« Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net):

Particulars Gross Amount (Rs) Loan Loss Provision (Rs) Net NPL (Rs)
Restructured - - -
Sub-Standard 14,042,589 3,510,647 10,531,942
Doubtful 41,150,244 20,575,122 20,575,122
Loss 9,044,634 9,044,634 -
Total 64,237,466.90 33,130,403 31,107,064

5.4.  (lassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value through other comprehensive income.
The following table exhibit the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

As on 32nd Ashar 2079

Financil Assets Amortized Cost FVTPL 0 Total

(ash and Cash Equivalents 1,000,941,234.05 - 1,000,941,234.05
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 87,659,297.22 - 87,659,297.22
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - -
Other Trading Assets - - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 445,250,735.34 - 445,250,735.34
Loans and Advances to Customers 3,548,577,259 - 3,548,577,259
Investment Securities - 56,856,756 56,856,756
Investment in Subsidiaries - - -
Investment in Associates - - -
Investment Property 77,503,112.96 - 77,503,112.96
Other Assets 131,758,569 - 131,758,569
Total Financial Assets 5,291,690,207 56,856,756 5,348,546,963

Financial Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Derivative Financial Instruments

Deposits from Customers 4,785,770,121.36 - 4,785,770,121.36

Borrowings 20,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00

Other Liabilities 146,994,430 - 146,994,430
Debt Securities Issued - -

Total Financial Liabilities 4,952,764,552 - 4.952,764,552
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5.5.  Operating Segment Information

1. General Information:

Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments

An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses, including
revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available. Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified three reporting
segments for the purpose of financial reporting:

2. Information about segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Particulars Kavre Sindhupalchok | Dolakha Chitwan Makawanpur | Total
Revenues from external customers 219,758,267 187,202,699 | 34,464,757 86,377,442 37,446,093 565,249,258
Inter Segment Expenses/revenues 23,614,045 57,227,986 | 11,509,664 1,986,123 930,856 95,268,675
Net Revenue 196,144,222 129,974,713 | 22,955,092 84,391,319 36,515,237 | 469,980,584
Interest revenue 182,945,832 125,896,797 | 22,763,000 81,040,891 34,095,172 | 446,741,693
Interest expense 97,131,041 105,843,282 | 27,447,217 38,794,493 10,243,633 279,459,666
Net interest expenses/revenue 85,814,792 20,053,515 -4.684,217 42,246,398 23,851,539 167,282,027
Depreciation and amortisation 6,632,196 4,056,287 607,335 3,514,066 1,215,418 16,025,302
Segment profit /(loss) 21,246,938 -383,372 | -5371,315 17,929,198 12,878,569 46,300,018
Impairment of assets

Segment assets 3,438,521,229 456,788,168 | 220,375,797 | 1,350,468,443 | 101,232,482 | 5,567,386,120
Segment liabilities 3,994,915,221 658,630,928 | 68,721,438 69,956,710 | 160,540,255 | 4,952,764,552

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The transaction between the department is recorded using the inter branch and inter department account. These accounts are reconciled and inter
department balances are cancelled out at each reporting date. The inter department revenue and expenses are the transfer pricing of the funds which

is calculated using the bank's policy

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

a. Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segments

565,249,258

Other revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues

(95,268,674.75)

Entity’s revenues

469,980,584

b. Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments

46,300,018

Other profit or loss

Elimination of intersegment profits

Unallocated amounts:

Profit before income tax

46,300,018

¢. Assets

Total assets for reportable segments

5,567,386,120

Other assets

Unallocated amounts

Entity’s assets

5,567,386,120

d. Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments

4,952,764,552

Other liabilities
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Unallocated liabilities

Entity’s liabilities

4,952,764,552

5. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

Areas: Domestic

Province 1

Madesh Pradesh

Bagmati Pradesh

469,980,584

Gandaki Pradesh -
Lumbini Pradesh -

Karnali Pradesh -

Sudur Paschim Pradesh -

Foreign -
Total 469,980,584

Information about major customers

The bank does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.
5.6.  Share options and share based payment

A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either as consideration for its equity instruments or by incurring
liabilities for amounts based on the price of the entity's shares or other equity instruments of the entity. The bank does not have any share option and
share based payment.

5.7. Contingent liabilities and commitment
Contingent Liabilities:

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such as for performance bonds or as irrevocable letters
of credit as part of the Bank’s transaction banking business for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are
included in these financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of customers to customs, for bids or offers.
Commitments:

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees,
whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these
financial statements as commitments.

Please refer Note No. 4.28.1 to 4.28.4 for the detail of contingent liabilities and commitments as at 16 July 2022.
Litigations:
The Bank has filed the legal case against the suspended staffs for the misutilization of the bank’s funds in Appellate Court, Patan for the recovery of the

fund. The defendant has accepted all the amount of embezzlement in written at the court and the legal procedure is continue as on date. The Bank does
not have any other litigation except the cases in ordinary course of business. The Bank does not anticipate any financial liability in these pending lawsuits.

Related parties' disclosures

a) List of Related Party
The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:
SA. Name of the Related Party Relationship
1 Rajendra Kumar Shrestha Chairman
2 Neeva Dangol Shrestha Director
3 Rajendra Prasad Pokharel Director
4 Dinesh Kumar K C Director
5 Sanjeeb Pradhan Director
6 Ramesh Kumar Bhandari Director
7 Sunil Man Shakya Director
8 Ram Kumar Giri Key Managerial Personnel
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9 Pramod Neupane Key Managerial Personnel
10 Rabin Kunwar Chettri Key Managerial Personnel
N Ravi Kumar Upadhyaya Key Managerial Personnel
12 Suman Thapa Key Managerial Personnel
13 Madhu Sudan Giri Key Managerial Personnel

b) Related Party Transactions

Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

SN. Particulars No of Meetings Sitting Fees
1 Board Meeting 34 1,645,000
2 Audit Committee Meeting 4 28,000
3 Risk Management Committee 3 42,000
4 Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee 4 28,000
5 Others 7 49,000
Total 17,92,000

In addition to above meeting allowance, the Chairman of the board and other member are entitled to allowance for telephone expenses and newspaper
expenses. The total amount of Rs.216,000.00 is paid during the year as telephone and newspaper reimbursement to the board of directors.

Key Managerial Personnel Emoluments and Facilities

SN. Particulars Amount
1 Short Term Employee Benefits 8,805,968
2 Retirement Benefits -
3 Others -
Total 8,805,968

In addition to above, the bank also provides other facilities like telephone as per the approved employee facilities of the bank.
5.8. Merger and acquisition

The bank has neither entered into merger nor acquired any bank and financial institutions.
5.9. Non-Banking Assets

Non-Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the Bank in the course of loan recovery. The
Bank do not possess any non- banking assets as of reporting date.

5.10. Covid-19 Related Disclosure:

As the COVID-19 continues to spread across the globe and Nepal, which has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in global and domestic
financial markets and a significant decrease in global and local economic activities. The bank has abided by the directives issued by NRB and has
continued to provide enhancement of working capital and term loan as below during the fiscal year:

As of Asadh End 2079
Particular
No. of Customers Amount (Nrs.)

Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio 2815 12,059,328.34
Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or Project NA NA
under construction

Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision NA NA
Waiver of Penal Interest 53 27,08,390.76

5.11. Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities:

a) Accrued Interest: As per the directive 4/77(3) issued by Nepal Rastra Bank the accrued interest received up to 15® Shrawan 2079 amounting to Rs.
8,816,258.65 has been adjusted in the regulatory reserve. However, the interest suspense as on Ashad end 2079 was Rs.28,548,595.91 Out of which
the interest on bad loan was Rs. 1,698,774.49.

%%
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b). Previous year adjustments of amount Rs. 209,133 were made and were transfer from reserve
during the year. The details are given below:

Particulars Amount

Rent Adjustment 40,000
Interest Adjustment 60,566.33
Last year accumulated difference 43,387.80
SCT charges 563.44
Miscellaneous expense adjustment last year 64,615.47

5.12. Events after reporting period
A. Impairment Charges/Reversal for loans and Advances

The Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39. The Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directives No. 2, inter alia requires to bank to classify the loans
and advances based on the due dates. In calculating the due dates, the bank has considered the recovery on installment and interest made after the
reporting period and up to 15® Shrawan 2079. There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16 July, 2022 till the signing of this financial
statement on 22" December 2022 (Poush 7, 2079)

5.13. Comparative Figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.

%9
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Principal Indicators of Last 5 Year Financial

FY2074-75 | FY2075-76 | FY2076-77 | FY2077-78 | FY2078-79

SN Particular Unit

As per NFRS
1 | NetProfit/ Gross Income Percent 6.38% 13.40% 3.01% -2.49% 9.85%
2 | Earning Per Share NPR 3.01 8.12 2.06 (1.85) 8.31
3 Market Value Per Share NPR 131.00 144.00 134.00 401.00 268.20
4 Price Earning Ratio Ratio 43.56 17.72 65.10 (217.12) 32.29
5 | Dividend (Including Bonus) Share Capital Percent 0.00% 12.09% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
6 | Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 0.00% 0.60% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
7 | Interestincome / Loans & Advances Percent 13.74% 14.08% 14.15% 9.71% 11.19%
8 | Staff Expenses / Total Operating Expenses Percent 20.57% 25.76% 21.32% 22.06% 21.36%
9 | Interest Expenses/ Total Deposit & Borrowings Percent 4.88% 5.70% 6.36% 4.63% 5.84%
10 | Exchange Gain/Total Income 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
11 | Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses Percent 6.17% 9.54% 2.26% 0.00% 8.73%
12 | NetProfit/Loans & Advances Percent 0.94% 2.01% 0.45% -0.29% 1.16%
13 | Net Profit/ Total Assets Percent 0.52% 1.25% 0.29% -0.21% 0.83%
14 | Total Credit/ Deposits Percent 70.44% 77.43% 76.43% 85.56% 83.45%
15 | Total Operation Expenses/Total Assets Percent 6.68% 2.73% 8.49% 6.73% 7.95%
16 | Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets)

(a) Core Capital Percent 26.93% 24.40% 21.48% 12.21% 11.55%
(b) Supplementary Capital Percent 0.76% 1.26% 1.19% 1.25% 1.17%
() Total Capital Fund Percent 27.69% 25.66% 22.67% 13.46% 12.72%
17 | Cash Reserve Ratio Percent 5.40% 4.72% 4.49% 3.98% 2.70%
18 | Non- Performing Loan / Loans & Advances Percent 2.92% 1.61% 1.96% 2.80% 1.60%
19 | Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread 7.30% 6.98% 5.74% 4.96% 4.97%
20 | Book Value Net Worth Per Share NPR 112.21 119.87 109.42 106.73 110.25
21 | Number of Equity Shares Nos. 5,000,273 | 5,000,273 | 5,574,561 5,574,561 | 5,574,561
22 | Number of Permanent Staffs Nos. 123 143 163 151 136

<<
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Comparison Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY 2078/79

Statement of Financial Position Variance
As per Audited As per unaudited Reasons for Variance
Assets Financial Statement | Financial Statement In amount In %

(ash and Cash Equivalents 1,000,941,234 1,000,941,234 - 0.00%

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 87,659,297 87,659,297 - 0.00%

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - 0.00%

Derivative Financial Instruments - - - 0.00%

Other Trading Assets - - - 0.00%

Loans and Advances to BFls 445,250,735 445,250,735 - 0.00%

Loans and Advances to Customers 3,548,577,259 3,564,486,657 | 15,909,398 0.45%

Investment Securities 56,856,756 49,236,843 | (7,619,913) -13.40%

Current Tax Assets 28,810,980 28,610,728 (200,252) -0.70%

Investment in Subsidiaries - - - 0.00%

Investment in Associates - - - 0.00%

Investment Property 77,503,113 53,034,175 | (24,468938) | -31.570 | OPEnIng figure was missing
during calculation
Disposal of assets was not

Property and Equipment 198,440,296 222,948,213 | 24,507,917 12.35% | mentioned in depreciation
sheet.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 2,165,490 2,168,892 3,401 0.16%

Deferred Tax Assets 18,233,371 17,128,084 | (1,105286) |  -6.06% | ament of Gratuity and
leave were not made.

Other Assets 102,947,589 61,814,043 | (41,133,546) -39.96%

Total Assets 5,567,386,120 5,533,278,901 | (34,107,219) -0.61%

Liabilities - - - 0.00%

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - 0.00%

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - 0.00%

Derivative Financial Instruments - - - 0.00%

Deposits from Customers 4,785,770,121 4,785,770,121 (0.42) 0.00%

Borrowings 20,000,000 20,000,000 - 0.00%
Impairement loss on
financial assets was

Current Tax Liabilities 28,414,636 2926346 | 848510 | 2,999 | deductedas expenses which
has now been added back,
due to expenses being
disallowed.

Provisions - - - 0.00%

Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - 0.00%
Due to bonus calculation

Other Liabilities 118,579,794 60,158,060 | (58,421,735) | 49,2795 | 2nd 2is0TDS has not been
deducted in Medical
Allowance.

Debt Securities Issued - - 0.00%

Subordinated Liabilities - - - 0.00%

Total Liabilities 4,952,764,552 4,895,191,327 | (57,573,225) -1.16%
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A
Equity - 0.00%
Share Capital 557,456,067 557,456,067 - 0.00%
Share Premium - - - 0.00%
Retained Earnings (70,329,997) (30,811,220) | 39,518,777 | -56.19%
Reserves 127,495,499 111,442,727 | (16,052,771) -12.59%
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 614,621,569 638,087,574 | 23,466,006
Statement of Profit or Loss
Interest Income 446,741,693 447,023,307 281,614 0.06%
Interest Expense 279,459,666 279,520,232 60,566 0.02%
Net Interest Income 167,282,027 167,503,075 221,048 0.13%
Fee and Commission Income 20,577,204 20,577,204 - 0.00%
Fee and Commission Expense 1,359,531 1,359,531 - 0.00%
Net Fee and Commission Income 19,217,672 19,217,672 - 0.00%
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 186,499,700 186,720,747 221,048 0.12%
Net Trading Income - - - 0.00%
Other Operating Income 2,661,687 3,446,141 784,455 29.47%
Total Operating Income 189,161,386 190,166,889 1,005,502 0.53%
:)Tﬁ:r"gses':fhargd (Reversal) for Loans and (46,605,730) (62,515,129) | (15,909,398) | 34.14% | Due to adjustments
Net Operating Income 235,767,117 252,682,017 | 16,914,901 7.17%
Operating Expense - 0.00%
Due to bonus figure which
Personnel Expenses 94,502,556 89,845,159 |  (4,657,397) -4.93% | was changed due to
adjustments

Other Operating Expenses 50,990,332 49,488,883 | (1,501,449) -2.94%
Depreciation & Amortisation 16,025,302 15,982,921 (42,380) -0.26%
Operating Profit 74,248,927 97,365,054 | 23,116,127 31.13%
Non Operating Income - - - 0.00%
Non Operating Expense - - - 0.00%
Profit Before Income Tax 74,248,927 97,365,054 | 23,116,127 31.13%
Income Tax Expense - - - 0.00%

Current Tax 28,143,326 29,263,146 1,119,820 3.98%

Deferred Tax (194,418) - 194,418 | -100.00%
Profit for the Period 46,300,018 68,101,907 | 21,801,889 47.09%

0.00%

Profit/(loss) for the period 46,300,018 68,101,907 | 21,801,889 47.09% | Due to adjustments
Other Comprehensive Income (26,349,495) (24,999,216) 1,350,279 -5.12% | Due to adjustments
Total comprehensive income 19,950,523 43,102,692 | 23,152,169 |  116.05%
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Sindhu Bikash Bank Limited

Branches
SN | Name Branch Department Email Office Contact No
1 Harisharan Thapa Barabise BM harisharan.thapa@sindhubank.com.np 011-489245/46
2 | Kabita Raya Banepa BM kabita.raya@sindhubank.com.np 011-662340/41
3 Nil Prasad Banjara Melamchi BM nil.banjara@sindhupalchok.com.np 011-401007
4 | BishowaTamang Khadichaur | BM bishowa.tamang@sindhubank.com.np 011-482148 / 9840722893
5 Amit Rajkarnikar Dolalghat BM amit.rajkarnikar@sindhubank.com.np 011-440175/440176 / 9841119677
6 | Sadikshya K.C. Mude Act.BM sadikshya.kc@sindhubank.com.np 9751062341
7 | Jeevan Shrestha Sukute BM/Cluster Head | jeevan.shrestha@sindhubank.com.np 011-400033
8 Rupak Bastakoti Sipaghat BM rupak.bastakoti@sindhubank.com.np 011404112 /9841176927
9 Meen Raj Awasti Bhakunde BM meen.awasti@sindhubank.com.np 011-405120
10 | Sitaram Dulal Panchkhal BM sitaram.dulal@sindhubank.com.np 011401116 /9808339312
11 | Mukesh Kumar Shrestha Charikot BM mukesh.shrestha@sindhubank.com.np 049-421979
12 | Surendra Upadhaya Chautara Act.BM surendra.upadhaya@sindhubank.com.np | 011-620429
13 | RajuG.C Singati Act.BM raju.gc@sindhubank.com.np 049-410034
14 | Lalita Shrestha Sildhunga Outlet Incharge | lalita.shrestha@sindhubank.com.np 9751061394
15 | Enosh Paudyal Jalbire Act.BM enosh.paudyal@sindhubank.com.np 49410034
16 | Pramila Khadka Panauti Act.BM pramila.khadka@sindhubank.com.np 011-440175
17 | Prakash Pudasainee Tandi BM prakash.pudasainee@sindhubank.com.np | 056-563144
18 | Manoj Pathak Parsa BM manoj.pathak@sindhubank.com.np 056-583145
19 | Prabesh K.C. Palung Act.BM prabesh.kc@sindhubank.com.np 057400026 / 9860071672
20 | Bijaya Sharma Bikashchowk | BM bijaya.sharma@sindhubank.com.np 056-418212/13
21 | Bastabik Thapaliya (Nishan) | Laurechowk | BM bastabik.thapaliya@sindhubank.com.np 056-413183
22 | NarendraTimalsina Narayanghat | BM narendra.timalsina@sindhubank.com.np | 056-595561
23 | Sudip Ghimire Chanauli BM sudip.ghimire@sindhubank.com.np 056-592128
24 | Sumitra Bhusal Hetauda BM sumitra.bhusal@sindhubank.com.np 057-520118
25 | Shiva Shankar Kharel Thokarpa Act.BM shiva.kharel@sindhubank.com.np 9851331715/9851331225
26 | Roshan Shrestha Lamosanghu | BM roshan.shrestha@sindhubank.com.np 011-495056
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